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AGENDA OF THE 2025 ANNUAL GENERAL
MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

Time:

From 07:30 to 11:30, June 20, 2025

VYenue:

Auditorium of the 7-Storey Guest House — Bim Son Cement JSC,
Dong Son Ward, Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

Time

~ Content _

07:30 - 08:00

Welcome delegates, guests, and shareholders; check procedures; register
shareholder list; distribute meeting materials and voting cards.

08:00 — 08:20

Introduce the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee.
Report on the verification results of shareholders eligible to attend the Meeting.

Flag ceremony, statement of purpose, and introduction of delegates and
participants.

Approve the Presidium, Secretariat, Vote Counting Committee, meeting agenda,
and working regulations of the Meeting.

08:20—-11:00

Report by the Board of Directors (BOD) on 2024 activities and 2025 operation
plan.

Independent BOD member’s evaluation report on BOD activities in 2024.

Report by the General Director on 2024 business performance and 2025 business
plan.

Report of the Supervisory Board for 2024 and activity plan for 2025.

Proposal for selection of the audit firm for the 2025 financial statements.

Proposal for amendments and supplements to the Company’s Charter.

Proposal for approval of the audited 2024 financial statements.

Proposal for the 2024 profit distribution plan.

Proposal on remuneration for the BOD, Supervisory Board, Company
Secretary, salaries of the General Director and other managers in 2024, and
remuneration/salary plan for 2025.

Discussion and voting on the matters presented at the Meeting.

11:00-11:10

Announcement of voting results for the matters presented.

11:10—-11:30

Approval of the Meeting Minutes and the Resolution of the General Meeting of
Shareholders.

Closing of the Meeting.




VIETNAM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
BIM SON CEMENT JSC

Thanh Hoa, , 2025

REGULATIONS
2) pim SON ,"" Organization of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
Sy of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company

Chapter 1
GENERAL PROVISIONS
Article 1. Scope and Subjects of Application

1. These Regulations govern the organization, administration, rights and
obligations of shareholders/proxies of shareholders, the procedures, and forms of
voting for the contents of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of Bim
Son Cement Joint Stock Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Company”).

2. These Regulations apply to shareholders/proxies of shareholders
(hereinafter collectively referred to as “shareholders™) who own voting shares of the
Company, as well as organizations and individuals invited to attend the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the
Meeting”).

Article 2. Conditions and Procedures for Holding the Meeting

1. The Meeting shall be conducted when shareholders attending represent at
least 51% of the total voting shares.

2. The Meeting shall discuss and approve the items listed in the Meeting
Agenda. Voting on each matter shall be conducted according to the voting procedure
and approval process specified in Article 10 of these Regulations.

Chapter 11
RIGHTS AND OBLIGATIONS OF PARTICIPANTS
IN THE GENERAL MEETING
Article 3. Rights of Shareholders Attending the Meeting

1. Shareholders have the right to attend, speak at the meeting, and to exercise
voting rights either directly, through a proxy, or via other forms as stipulated in the
Company’s Charter and relevant laws.

2. Shareholders may authorize individuals or organizations to attend the
Meeting on their behalf in writing, using the proxy form attached to the Company’s
Invitation Letter. Authorized individuals or organizations must present the proxy
documents when registering before entering the meeting room.

3. Shareholders are entitled to receive notification of the content and agenda
of the Meeting.

4. Each shareholder or authorized representative attending the Meeting will
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receive one Voting Card (yellow) after registering with the Shareholder Eligibility
Verification Committee.

5. Shareholders or authorized representatives arriving late (after the Meeting
has opened, but before the Resolutions are passed) are still allowed to register and
have the right to participate and vote on any matters not yet voted on. The
Chairperson is not obliged to pause the Meeting to allow latecomers to register, and
the validity of resolutions voted on prior to their arrival remains unaffected. The
Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee is responsible for updating the
number of voting shares of late-arriving shareholders into the total number of voting
shares for calculating approval ratios for subsequent voting items.

6. Shareholders have the right to nominate or be nominated as candidates for
the Board of Directors if they meet the conditions and criteria stipulated in the
Company’s Charter and the law. For groups of ordinary shareholders nominating a
candidate to the Board of Directors, they must inform the attending shareholders of
the group formation before the Meeting is convened.

Article 4. Obligations of Shareholders Attending the Meeting

1. Shareholders or authorized representatives attending the Meeting must
bring their ID card or passport, invitation letter, proxy form (if applicable), or a
document appointing a capital representative (for institutional shareholders), and
must register with the Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee.

2.If a shareholder has authorized another person without providing written
notice of revocation, the shareholder will not receive a Voting Card at the Meeting if
the authorized person has already completed the procedure to receive one.

3. Authorized representatives may not further delegate their authority to a
third party.

4. During the Meeting, participants must follow the instructions of the
Presidium/Organizing Committee, behave in a respectful and courteous manner,
maintain order, and respect the outcomes and proceedings of the Meeting.

Article 5. Rights and Obligations of the Presidium

1. The Presidium consists of a Chairperson and several members elected by
the General Meeting, responsible for presiding over and conducting the Meeting.

2. The decisions of the Presidium regarding procedures, order, or any
unforeseen matters arising outside the agenda of the Meeting shall be final and
binding.

3. The Presidium shall carry out all necessary actions to ensure the Meeting is
conducted lawfully and orderly, and to ensure that the outcome reflects the will of
the majority of shareholders present.

4. At any time, the Presidium may postpone the Meeting to another time (in
accordance with the Law on Enterprises and the Company's Charter) without seeking
approval from the General Meeting if it determines that:

a) The behavior of attendees is disrupting or may disrupt the orderly conduct

of the Meeting; or

b) Postponement is necessary for the proper conduct of the Meeting.

Article 6. Rights and Obligations of the Shareholder Eligibility
Verification Committee
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The Shareholder Eligibility Verification Committee is appointed by the
Company’s Board of Directors and has the following duties:

1. Verify the eligibility of shareholders to attend the Meeting, including
checking ID cards or passports, invitation letters, and proxy forms (if applicable).

2. Distribute voting cards and meeting materials to shareholders attending the
General Meeting (if any).

3. Report to the General Meeting on the results of the shareholder eligibility
verification and the number of participants, along with the total number of voting
shares, to ensure the Meeting is conducted in accordance with regulations.

Article 7. Rights and Obligations of the Vote Counting Committee

1. The Vote Counting Committee consists of one Head and several members
nominated by the Presidium and approved by the General Meeting.

2. The Vote Counting Committee is responsible for:

a) Guiding shareholders on how to use the Voting Cards; counting the number
of Voting Cards; and reporting the voting results to the Meeting Secretary.

b) Carrying out vote counting and announcing the results to the Meeting
Secretary.

c) Collecting the Voting Cards from shareholders immediately after the
resolution has been voted on.

Article 8. Rights and Obligations of the Meeting Secretary

1. The Meeting Secretary is nominated by the Presidium and approved by
the General Meeting.

2. The Secretary is responsible for: taking the Minutes of the Meeting,
drafting the Meeting Resolution, and performing other support tasks as assigned
by the Presidium.

3. Presenting the Meeting Minutes and the draft Resolution before the
closing of the Meeting.

Chapter I11
PROCEDURES FOR CONDUCTING THE GENERAL MEETING
Article 9. Discussion and Questioning at the Meeting

1. Only shareholders attending the Meeting have the right to participate in
discussions and raise questions.

2. Shareholders may express opinions by raising their hands and obtaining the
Chairperson’s approval. Only one shareholder may speak at a time.

3. Shareholder’comments must be relevant to the Meeting Agenda, must not
violate the law, and must not exceed the authority of the General Meeting.

4. Each shareholder is allowed a maximum of five (05) minutes to speak. If
the time limit is exceeded, the Chairperson may request that the shareholder to submit
their questions or suggestions in writing, and the Board of Directors will provide a
written response within 5 working days from the date of receipt.
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Article 10. Voting and Approval of Matters at the General Meeting

1. Voting Cards

a) Voting Cards (referred to as “Cards™) are issued by the Company to
shareholders at the Meeting and bear the Company’s stamp at the top left corner.
Each shareholder is issued one Card, which includes the shareholder's full name,
address, and total number of shares (equivalent to total voting rights), including any
shares represented by proxy.

b) Invalid Voting Cards include those not issued by the Company, or that have
been crossed out, erased, altered, or contain unauthorized additional content.

2. Voting Principles:

A shareholder is considered to have attended and voted at the General Meeting
in the following cases:

a) Voting directly at the Meeting by raising the Voting Card.

b) Authorizing another individual or organization to attend and vote directly
at the Meeting.

¢) Sending their vote by letter, fax, or email to the Presidium prior to the vote
on a matter included in the Meeting Agenda or the Meeting’s Resolution.

3. For each matter requiring a vote, the Chairperson will seek opinions from
shareholders in the following order: approval, disapproval, abstention. For each
voting item, a shareholder may raise their Voting Card only once.

4. When voting on each item presented at the Meeting, shareholders cast their
vote by raising their Voting Card. The voting result will be determined by counting
the number of votes for, against, and abstentions.

5. For the vote on the Meeting Resolution, the number of approving Cards will
be counted first, followed by the disapproving Cards.

6. A matter requiring a vote is approved when the number of votes in favor
equals or exceeds the percentage of total votes of all shareholders attending and
voting at the Meeting, as stipulated in the Company’s Charter.

7. In case a shareholder or their authorized representative must leave the
Meeting temporarily or before it ends, they must notify the Vote Counting
Committee in advance regarding their absence and voting intention.

Article 11. Other Provisions

Any matters related to the organization and administration of the Meeting, and
the rights and obligations of shareholders not specified in these Regulations shall be
implemented in accordance with the Company's Charter and applicable laws.
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Chapter IV
IMPLEMENTING PROVISIONS

Article 12. Effectiveness
1. These Regulations consist of 04 Chapters and 12 Articles and shall take

effect immediately upon approval by the General Meeting.

2. Shareholders and all participants of the Meeting are responsible for strictly
complying with these Regulations. Any violation shall, depending on their nature and
severity, be subject to handling in accordance with applicable laws and the

Company’s Charter.

ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
OF DIRECTORS
CHAIRMAN

Le Huu Ha
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VICEM %) ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
A BIM SON 54 BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

REMOTE VOTING BALLOT
(Applicable for shareholders voting on the contents of the 2025 Annual
General Meeting via mail, fax, or email)

Shareholder's name: ........
ID/Enterprise Registration Certificate NUMDET: .........ccceveerererererrneneneeeceereeeeensenens

Place Of 1SSUE: woveveieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e e e eeeeeeseeseneens Date of 1SSUE: woeveveeeeeererrennns

{070 41 r2 107 A Ta (o1 (<1 SRR USROS SRRRRR

Lo Hihe T g o T shares.
SHAREHOLDER'S VOTE:

(shareholders check the box with an “x”)

Pursuant to the Invitation Letter to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company and the reports, proposals,
and draft resolutions published on the Company’s website at

https://ximangbimson.com.vn (under Investor Relations).
1. Approval of the Report by the Board of Directors (BOD) on 2024 activities and
2025 operation plan.

O Agree O Disagree 0 No opinion
2. Approval of the Independent BOD member’s evaluation report on BOD activities
in 2024.

O Agree [ Disagree [ No opinion
3. Approval of the Report by the General Director on 2024 business performance and
2025 business plan.

00 Agree 0 Disagree [J No opinion

4. Approval of the Report of the Supervisory Board for 2024 and activity plan for

2025.

00 Agree O Disagree 0 No opinion
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5. Approval of the Proposal for selection of the audit firm for the 2025 financial
statements.

O Agree O Disagree [J No opinion

6. Approval of the Proposal for amendments and supplements to the Company’s
Charter.

O Agree O Disagree [J No opinion
7. Approval of the Audited 2024 Financial Statements

O Agree [ Disagree 1 No opinion
8. Approval of the 2024 Profit Distribution Plan

O Agree [ Disagree 0 No opinion

9. Approval of the Proposal on Remuneration for the Board of Directors, Supervisory
Board, Company Secretary, and Salaries for the General Director and Other
Managers in 2024, and the Remuneration and Salary Plan for 2025

Ol Agree [ Disagree [ No opinion
10. Approval of the Resolution of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
[l Agree O Disagree [0 No opinion
............... s e vee e e year 2025

SHAREHOLDER

(signature, full name in capital letters, and stamp if an
organization)

Note: This voting ballot is not applicable for proxies or authorized representatives of shareholders.

N/

AN




8

ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS 2025
BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

Thanh Hoa, , 2025

_ VICEM &

BIM SON “#i?

VOTING BALLOT
(At the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders)

] s EE TS 1 0] (6 5 OSSR

Note:
Shareholders use this voting ballot to vote on the contents of the meeting agenda.

This voting ballot will be collected after the resolution of the General Meeting of Shareholders
has been approved.
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SETNAM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
' CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
SON CEMENT JSC.

Thanh Hoa, , 2025

REPORT ON THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ PERFORMANCE
IN 2024 AND OPERATIONAL PLAN FOR 2025

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020-QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Bim Son Cement Joint
Stock Company.

The Board of Directors (BOD) of the Company espectfully reports on the
BOD’s performance in 2024 and outlines the orientation and tasks for 2025 as
follows:

I. GENERAL SITUATION
1. Economic Environment

In 2024, landscape continued to experience complex and unpredictable
developments. Geopolitical tensions and escalating military conflicts in several
regions—particularly the heightened tensions in the Middle East—disrupted supply
chains and the energy market. Additionally, natural disasters and extreme weather
conditions worldwide continued to impact the global economy, including Vietnam.

Domestically, the Vietnamese economy maintained a strong recovery trajectory
and achieved positive outcomes. However, it still faced numerous challenges and
difficulties, such as potential risks in the financial and monetary markets; inflationary
pressures; exchange rate fluctuations; slow disbursement of public investment
capital; and limited capital absorption capacity of the economy. These factors
continued to affect production and business activities in several sectors.

Vietnam's Gross Domestic Product (GDP) in 2024 increased by 7.09%
compared to 2023, exceeding the National Assembly’s target of 6.5—-7%. The average
Consumer Price Index (CPI) in 2024 rose by 3.63% compared to the previous year.

2. Cement Industry Situation

The domestic cement market witnessed intense competition in 2024 due to a
significant oversupply compared to demand. This led to fierce rivalry among cement
producers, resulting in reduced selling prices, increased sales policies/discounts and
promotions, and the continuous introduction of new, low-priced products and brands
to maintain market share. There has been a growing shift in demand from bagged
cement to bulk cement, with selling prices trending downward. Meanwhile, input
material and fuel prices for production remained high. Additionally, the average retail
electricity price increased by 4.8% from October 11, 2024, further driving up
production costs and reducing operational efficiency.
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The cement and clinker export markets also faced numerous challenges due to
declining global demand. Furthermore, export prices dropped due to competition
from excess supply in countries such as Indonesia, Pakistan, and the UAE. These
factors significantly impacted the business operations of cement producers in general
and Bim Son Cement in particular.

II. RESULTS OF IMPLEMENTING THE 2024 AGM RESOLUTION

Amid continued complex developments in both the global and domestic
economy, along with the common difficulties of the Vietnamese cement industry, the
Company’s Board of Directors proactively conducted a comprehensive analysis and
assessment of the opportunities and challenges. Based on that, the BOD set out clear
directions and specific solutions in leadership, management, and supervision to
effectively carry out the plan assigned by the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

With that spirit, in 2024, the Company made great efforts to overcome
difficulties and successfully fulfilled its production and business targets,
achieving profitability and high growth compared to the targets set by the AGM
Resolution. The specific business results for 2024 are as follows:

1. Results of Business and Production Activities

I. PRODUCTION

1. Clinker Ton 2,800,410 | 2,331,424 | 1,726,134 120.1% 162.2%
2. Cement (including |« | 3 554 195 | 2065000 2,796,080 |  119.9% 127.1%
toll processing)

II. CONSUMPTION o 3,794,924 | 3,300,000 | 3,079,529 115.0% 123.2%
1. Cement “« 3,534,849 | 2,965,000 | 2,830,962 119.2% 124.9%
2. Clinker * 260,075 335,000 248,568 77.6% 104.6%
III. FINANCIALS

1. Total Revenue %ﬂlj\]lgl 3,499.55 3,095.51 3,083.05 113.1% 113.5%
2. Profit before tax B 3.61 -158.85 -205.14

3. Profit after tax o 3.61 -158.85 -205.14

4, Profit after tax/ "

Equity % 0.18 -8.10 -10.47

5. State Budget Billion

Contribution VND 108.68 122.52 115.27 88.7% 94.3%
6. Dividend rate % 0 0 0

=a\\
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In 2024, the Company fully implemented policies and regimes concerning
employees and wages, ensuring job stability and livelihood for its workforce.

The debt-to-equity ratio in 2024 was 0.76 times, and the capital preservation
ratio was 1.00

2. Investment and Development Activities

2.1. Waste Heat Recovery Power Generation Project

- On November 12, 2024, the Company signed Contract No. 03/2024/G1/BCC
& C-HOPE - NARIME with the joint venture contractor C-HOPE - NARIME for
Package No. 1: “Provision of design, materials — equipment, general construction
and installation, and technical services for the project.”

- The Company is currently coordinating efforts to accelerate the project's
implementation progress.

2.2. New Raw Material Warehouse Project

In 2024, the Company completed final settlement and audit of contracts and
approved the investment capital settlement for the completed Raw Material Storage
Project in accordance with Decision No. 1651/QD-HPQT dated June 25, 2024.

2.3. Tam Dien Clay Mine Expansion Project — Phase 2

In 2024, the Company completed the on-site inventory for all 25 affected
households. The Company is currently working closely with provincial departments
and local authorities to carry out the necessary procedures for compensation and site
clearance.

3. Supervision of the CEO and Executive Board

In 2024, the Board of Directors (BOD) performed its supervisory role over the
General Director and the Executive Board through a regular reporting mechanism on
the implementation of tasks based on resolutions passed in board meetings.

The General Director and management team fully carried out their
responsibilities and powers in accordance with the Company’s Charter and current
laws. The Executive Board proactively introduced timely and flexible solutions to
address challenges, thereby successfully fulfilling key objectives set for the year.

4. Evaluation of Activities of BOD Members

In 2024, the members of the BOD fully participated in all BOD meetings and
contributed written opinions on matters within their authority, demonstrating a high
level of responsibility and active engagement for the benefit of shareholders and the
sustainable development of the Company.

In addition to fulfilling their general responsibilities in BOD activities, each
member of the BOD seriously and effectively carried out the specific duties assigned,
as follows:

- The Chairman of the BOD fully performed his functions and responsibilities
in accordance with the Law on Enterprises, the Company’s Charter, and internal
regulations. Specifically, the Chairman developed the annual work plan; assigned
tasks to BOD members; prepared agendas, content, and documents for meetings;
convened and presided over BOD meetings; collected written opinions; and managed
the issuance of BOD Resolutions and Decisions.

A& B xS vewn
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- BOD members in charge of business and production actively provided
direction, oversight, and successfully completed their assigned tasks, making
significant contributions to the achievement of the Company’s 2024 objectives.

- The Company’s BOD included two independent members, both of whom
attended all meetings and participated in all written opinion rounds in 2024. They
offered well-founded feedback that contributed to the effective performance of the
BOD in particular and the Company as a whole.

5. Evaluation of BOD Performance

The Board of Directors proactively adhered to the Company Charter,
thoroughly and seriously implemented the Resolutions of the 2024 Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders, and fully exercised its functions, duties, and powers in
accordance with the Charter and applicable laws.

All BOD members consistently complied with the policies of the Party and the
laws of the State while ensuring that the BOD’s leadership and management were
carried out in line with the Company’s Charter and AGM Resolutions, and in
compliance with legal regulations. Despite ongoing difficulties in the cement
industry, the Company made strong efforts to overcome challenges, successfully met
its 2024 production and business targets, and maintained stable employment and
income for its workforce.

Within the scope of its assigned functions, duties, and powers—and based on
the AGM Resolution and actual conditions—the BOD effectively carried out its
governance work in 2024. Specifically, the BOD held a total of 39 meetings
(including regular and ad hoc sessions), issued 59 Resolutions and 1 major Decision,
providing timely direction for operations in business, construction investment, and
other related areas, thereby contributing to the Company’s sustainable development
strategy.

6. Transactions Between the Company and Related Parties

In 2024, the Company signed several contracts involving business managers,
such as cement processing contracts with VICEM Tam Diep One Member Limited
Liability Company and Central Cement Joint Stock Company; packaging contracts
with VICEM Bim Son Packaging Joint Stock Company; and various other
transactions serving production and business operations. All transactions were
conducted in a public and transparent manner, with full disclosure of information (as
detailed in the attached appendix).

III. OPERATIONAL PLAN FOR 2025

It is forecasted that in 2025, the economic landscape will continue to face many
difficulties and challenges. Building upon the achievements of previous years and
with a strong determination to overcome remaining limitations, the Company’s
Board of Directors sets forth the following key objectives and tasks for 2025:

lle! == O \an




1. Main Targets
%
Unit of Compared
No. Target T Pr——— Actual 2024 | Plan 2025 t0 2024
Actual
1 | Main Product Output
1.1 | Clinker Ton 2,800,410 | 2,855,000 101.9%
1.2 | Cement (including  toll « 3,554,195 | 3,572,000  100.5%
processing)
- | Self-produced cement = 3,242,464 | 3,292,000 101.5%
_ | Toll pr_ocessed at VICEM « 311,731 280,000 89.8%
Tam Diep
y- (DA Emidpe Ssles « 3,794924 | 4,162,000 |  109.7%
Volume
2.1 | Clinker “ 260,075 610,000 234.5%
2y | Kement (néluding ol “ 3,534,849 | 3,552,000|  100.5%
processing)
3 | Total Revenue Billion VND 3,499.546 | 3,783.813 108.1%
4 | Profit Before Tax “ 3.607 45.046 | 1,248.8%
5 | Profit After Tax “ 3.607 45.046 | 1,248.8%
6 | Return on Equity (ROE) % 0.18 230 1,277.8%
7 | State budget contribution | Billion VND 108.677 108.958 100.3%
8 | Dividend Payout Ratio % 0 0

Note: The planned profit figures for 2025 in indicators 4, 5, and 6 do not
include foreign exchange differences.

2. Key Tasks

- Direct the effective implementation of the 2025 production and business
targets set by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

- Fulfill the functions and responsibilities of the Board of Directors in
accordance with the law and the Company’s Charter; preserve and grow capital; fully

meet obligations to the State; ensure shareholders’ rights; and maintain job stability

and income for employees.

2.1. Production Activities

- Closely monitor actual conditions and ensure tight coordination between
production, sales, procurement, and inventory management to develop the most
flexible and efficient kiln operation plans based on the structure and types of coal
used; optimize operations to reduce costs and consumption rates, especially thermal
and electrical energy.
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- Focus on equipment maintenance and repair management to maintain stable
production; ensure that repaired equipment is ready reliable operation and capable of
performing at full capacity when demand increases.

- Continue research and implement innovation and digitalization programs in
production; promote the use of alternative materials and fuels (e.g., ash, slag,
synthetic gypsum) to lower production costs and support environmental protection.

- Accelerate the licensing process for the expansion of the Yen Duyen limestone
quarry; complete procedures for land leasing for Phase 2 of the Tam Dien clay mine
expansion to secure long-term raw material sources.

- Strengthen occupational health and safety measures, improve working
conditions for employees, and gradually build a greener, cleaner, and more beautiful
company environment.

2.2. Sales and Distribution Activities

- Monitor and stay closely follow the distributor network, evaluate the
performance of each distributor, and support them in achieving their committed sales
volumes.

- Effectively manage and maintain strong relationships with the distribution
network; apply sales policies flexibly, timely, and appropriately based on target
groups and regions to increase sales volume, market share, and brand coverage.

- Focus on boosting traditional bagged cement sales in key markets where the
brand has strong recognition and advantages, such as Hanoi, Thanh Hoa, Nam Dinh,
Ha Tinh, and the Binh Tri Thien area.

- Closely track major construction projects and develop specific sales strategies
for each project to increase bulk cement sales volume.

- Actively seek and engage with customers for direct export opportunities to
increase sales, enhance economic efficiency, and reduce inventory pressure and yard
stockpiling.

- Review the distributor network and sales regions, and prepare strategies to
ensure stable sales, maintain, and expand market share and volume, especially after
administrative boundary changes are implemented.

- Expand the use of information technology in sales operations, particularly the
implementation of the non-stop loading and dispatch project.

3. Investment Activities

- Accelerate the implementation of the following investment projects: the Waste
Heat Recovery Power Generation Project, Phase 2 expansion of the Tam Dien clay
mine, Yen Duyen 1 & 2 limestone quarry projects, and the renovation of the
electrostatic precipitators at Kiln No. 2 (36.20) and Kiln No. 3 (36.1-06).

- Proactively coordinate with central ministries, agencies, and local authorities
to expedite the resolution of existing issues and to complete all necessary documents
and procedures related to mine management and exploitation. Special attention
should be given to monitoring and addressing challenges caused by the planned
North—South high-speed railway project, which is expected to pass through the Phase
2 Tam Dien clay mine and the Co Dam clay mine areas. Ensuring stable production
in both the short and long term is critical. Throughout the implementation process,
all activities must strictly comply with legal regulations.
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4. Organizational and Personnel Matters

- Ensure full and proper implementation of employee rights and benefits.

- Restructure and review the organizational model toward streamlining,
enhancing professionalism, and aligning with the new operating context.

- Continue improving and innovating the wage distribution scheme to further
motivate employees.

- Conduct advanced and specialized training for leadership, management staff,
equipment operators, and maintenance technicians.

5. Other Matters

- Central Region Cement Joint Stock Company (CRC): Continue implementing
community engagement efforts to maintain stable operations at the plant while
awaiting relocation and resettlement plans. At the same time, ensure effective
management and maintenance of machinery and equipment to prepare for stable and
efficient future operations. The Company will also continue negotiations with BIDV,
VDB, and other creditors to secure debt restructuring or deferment to stabilize
business operations.

- Disposal of unused properties and land: The Company proposes the following
asset handling plans for approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders:

+ VICEM Bim Son Operations Center Project: Permanently terminate the
project and return the land to the local authorities.

+ Library, medical facility, and Classroom buildings in Dong Son Ward, Bim
Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province: Liquidate on-site assets and return the land to local
management.

The above is the Report on the Activities in 2024 and the Operational Plan for
2025 of the Board of Directors. In the coming period, the Board will continue to
build upon the achievements made, focusing on mobilizing collective strength,
intelligence, and unity to successfully fulfill the 2025 tasks, aiming for sustainable
and long-term development of the Company.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for review and
approval

Sincerely thank you.
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
- ;C:rMth; S 56e B DIRECTORS
- Archived: Office, Company’s HAIRMAN
Secretary. =

Le Huu Ha
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Wiy AM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
SON CEMENT JSC.

Thanh Hoa, , 2025

INDEPENDENT BOARD MEMBER’S ASSESSMENT REPORT
ON THE ACTIVITIES OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS IN 2024

Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock
Company.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020-QHI14 passed by the
National Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Bim Son Cement
Joint Stock Company.

The Independent Board Member of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company
provides the following assessment report on the activities of the Company’s Board
of Directors in 2024:

1. Regarding the Organizational Structure of the Board of Directors

- The organizational structure of the Board of Directors complies with the
Company's Charter and legal regulations in terms of the number of members,
qualifications, and eligibility, as well as meeting the legal requirements
concerning the proportion of independent members.

- On April 26, 2024, the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders approved
the dismissal of one member of the Board of Directors(BOD).

Accordingly, the total number of BOD members is now six (06), including
two (02) independent members.

2. Regarding the Organization of Board Meetings

- BOD meetings were convened fully and properly, ensuring procedural
compliance with regulations.

- In 2024, the Company’s BOD held 39 meetings and issued 59 Resolutions
(some based on written opinions collected in rotation) and 1 Decision to direct the
Company’s activities within its authority.

- The collection of written opinions from BOD members was carried out in
accordance with regulations for matters within the BOD’s approval authority. As
a result, the BOD’s Minutes, Resolutions, and Decisions were issued in proper
form as required.

- Matters related to business and production plans, capital investment
projects, internal management documentation, and personnel organizational
structure were all thoroughly discussed and closely monitored.




3. Overall Assessment of the Board of Directors’ Activities

In 2024, the BOD fully exercised its duties, powers, and responsibilities in
accordance with legal regulations, the Company’s Charter, and the BOD's
Operational Regulations. The BOD’s directions and management were
implemented in line with the orientations set out in the Resolutions of the General
Meeting of Shareholders and closely aligned with the practical business and
production activities of the Company.

The BOD members actively recognized their roles and responsibilities in
supporting the Executive Board, maintaining close, flexible, and timely
coordination in management and oversight. As a result, response measures to the
production conditions and market fluctuations—amidst the general difficulties of
the cement industry, especially for Bim Son Cement—were effectively
implemented.

The BOD's activities in 2024 achieved several positive outcomes,
specifically:

- Directed stable and efficient production operations; ensured product
quality; improved the production environment; and enhanced business
performance.

- Focused on guiding measures to maintain and expand the domestic market
while effectively exploiting export markets; emphasized maintaining and
increasing market share in key regions, contributing to strengthening the
Company’s competitive position.

- Directed the implementation of investment and construction projects in
compliance with current legal regulations and in alignment with the Company’s
development strategy.

- Reviewed, amended, and completed internal management regulations to
improve operational efficiency and ensure compliance with actual practices and
legal requirements.

4. Conclusion

In 2024, the activities of the Board of Directors of Bim Son Cement Joint
Stock Company were organized and carried out in accordance with current legal
regulations, the Company’s Charter, the Board’s Operational Regulations, and the
Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders. Specifically:

- The Board of Directors fulfilled all assigned functions and duties; closely
supervised the Company’s management activities; and promptly provided
appropriate guidance and direction in response to production conditions and
market fluctuations. The Board also worked closely with the Executive Board to
identify solutions for overcoming difficulties, making a positive contribution to
the Company’s overall business performance.

- Fully complied with obligations to the State; ensured the legitimate rights
and interests of shareholders and employees.




This concludes the independent Board member’s assessment report on the
Board of Directors’ performance in 2024.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for review
and approval.

Sincerely thank you.

Recipients: INDEPENDENT BOARD INDEPENDENT BOARD

- GMS; MEMBER MEMBER
-BOD;

- Archived: Office,
Company’s
Secretary.

Ngo Duc Viet Le Thi Khanh




VIETNAM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
\ CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness

Thanh Hoa, , 2025

REPORT ON BUSINESS PERFORMANCE IN 2024
AND BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025

I. BUSINESS PERFORMANCE RESULTS IN 2024
1. Business Environment

a) Economic

- In 2024, the global economy faced numerous risks stemming from
increasingly complex military conflicts around the world; political instability in
several major economies such as Germany, France, South Korea, etc.; tight monetary
policies; global public debt reaching record highs; inflation and interest rates
remaining elevated; and increasingly severe and unpredictable natural disasters and
climate change.

- Domestically, the economy continued its positive recovery trend, with
macroeconomic stability, controlled inflation, strong fiscal and monetary balances,
and a high surplus—reinforcing confidence among businesses, investors, and the
public. However, it still faced several challenges such as inflationary pressures,
exchange rate fluctuations, slow disbursement of public investment capital, and
limited capital absorption capacity in the economy. These factors continued to cause
difficulties in production and business operations in certain sectors. Vietnam's Gross
Domestic Product (GDP) in 2024 grew by 7.09% compared to 2023, exceeding the
National Assembly's target of 6.5-7%. The average Consumer Price Index (CPI) in
2024 increased by 3.63% compared to 2023.

b) Cement Industry

- Cement supply continued to significantly exceed demand (in 2024, the cement
supply reached 117.8 million tons, while domestic demand was approximately 58.6—
59 million tons, an increase of 3.3%—4.2% compared to 2023; cement and clinker
exports totaled around 30 million tons, down 3.8% compared to 2023).

- Demand remained weak due to the ongoing stagnation of the real estate
market; shortages and rising prices of construction materials such as sand, stone, and
gravel caused delays in construction progress; and public investment projects were
slow to be implemented.

- Non-VICEM cement brands continued to launch new brands and product lines
while lowering prices to increase competitiveness in the market.

- Cement selling prices showed a downward trend, while input costs for raw
materials and fuel remained high. Additionally, from October 11, 2024, the average
retail electricity price increased by 4.8%, contributing to higher production costs and




reduced operational efficiency.

- The growing shift in demand from bagged cement to bulk cement further
reduced the Company’s business efficiency due to the loss of brand value
traditionally associated with bagged products.

- The export markets for cement and clinker became increasingly difficult and
fiercely competitive. FOB export prices for cement to the Philippines dropped by
USD 2.0-3.0/ton by the end of 2024 compared to early 2024, and by USD 8.0—
9.0/ton compared to early 2023. Clinker export prices to the main market of
Bangladesh fell by USD 2.5/ton by the end of 2024 compared to early 2024 and by
USD 10.0-10.5/ton compared to early 2023, due to competition from surplus supply
in countries such as Indonesia, Pakistan, and the UAE.

2. Results of Business and Production Activities

1. PRODUCTION

1. Clinker Ton | 2,800,410 | 2,331,424 | 1,726,134 120.1% 162.2%
2. Cement (including | o | 3 554 195 | 2065000 | 2.796.080 |  119.9% 127.1%
toll processing)

II. CONSUMPTION % 3,794,924 | 3,300,000 | 3,079,529 115.0% 123.2%
1. Cement « 3,534,849 | 2,965,000 | 2,830,962 119.2% 124.9%
2. Clinker & 260,075 335,000 248,568 77.6% 104.6%
III. FINANCIALS

1. Total Revenue %ﬂNhgl 3,499.55 3,095.51 3,083.05 113.1% 113.5%
2. Profit before tax « 3.61 -158.85 -205.14

3. Profit after tax = 3.61 -158.85 -205.14

4. Profit after tax/ i

Kty % 0.18 -8.10 -10.47

5. State Budget Billion

Contribution VND 108.68 122.52 115.27 88.7% 94.3%
6. Dividend rate % 0 0 0

3. Organization and Human Resources

- Labor Utilization:

+ Planned workforce for 2024: 1,180 employees

+ Actual workforce as of January 1, 2024: 1,192 employees

+ Actual workforce as of December 31, 2024: 1,135 employees, a decrease of
57 employees compared to the beginning of the year.
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+ During the year, the company recruited 14 new employees and had 71
employees leave due to contract termination or retirement.

+ Average number of employees in 2024: 1,163.

- The total salary fund executed in 2024 was VND 267.33 billion, achieving
100% of the 2024 plan (VND 267.33 billion). Additional payments included VND
9.37 billion for meal allowances and VND 4.19 billion for hazardous work
compensation.

- Insurance and Employee Benefits : 100% of employees were covered by social
insurance (SI), health insurance (HI), and were provided with personal protective
equipment. All employees were entitled to welfare benefits, rewards, and recognition
in accordance with the Company’s policies and regulations. Employees leaving due
to retirement or contract termination were supported according to regulations. The
Company also paid close attention to employee well-being and ensured their rights.
In 2024:

- Sickness and maternity benefits amounted to VND 0.54 billion;

- Support for Vietnamese Heroic Mothers and relatives of martyrstotaled VND
0.12 billion;

-Social welfare, humanitarian aid, and donations/gifis to disadvantaged
individuals and policy beneficiary families totaled VND 2.21 billion.

- Training: The Company continued to prioritize internal training, focusing on
improving the skills of equipment operators and maintenance personnel.

-In 2024, the company reviewed, revised, and issued 11 internal regulatory
documents.

4. Information Technology

- In sales digitization: Developed features for managing the export delivery
schedule for export orders and planning for domestic orders.

- In production digitization: Completed the adjustment of cost estimate and
settlement form templates, and developed features to manage self-executed repair
cost plans. Installed a camera monitoring system at production points and an
emissions monitoring camera system.

- Maintained security across all systems to ensure the safety of information and
digital data, with no incidents reported related to data security.

S. Safety & Environmental Management

- ISO systems: Maintained and continuously improved ISO 9001, 14001, and
45001.

- Officially put into operation a 5 m*/day wastewater treatment system at the
Yen Duyen limestone quarry office area.

- Regularly reviewed and addressed areas with potential safety or
environmental risks. Enhanced inspection and supervision of occupational safety and
health (OSH) in production and repair activities. In 2024, both personnel and
equipment safety were ensured.

- Carried out effective tree planting and maintenance; improved landscaping,

l=! == o0u \ay




4

site cleanliness, and equipment hygiene, gradually enhancing the working
environment for employees.

6. Construction Investment

In 2024, the executed work volume reached VND 4.041 billion, equivalent to
11.57% of the annual plan. Payments made amounted to VND 16.784 billion, or

17.36% of the annual plan.
* Waste Heat Recovery Power Generation Project

In 2024, the executed volume was VND 2.971 billion, equivalent to 28.56%
of the annual plan; the cumulative executed volume from the beginning of the project
to the end of December 2024 was VND 6.165 billion.

Payments made in 2024 totaled VND 0.422 billion, or 0.86% of the annual
plan; cumulative payments from the beginning of the project to the end of December
2024 were VND 2.136 billion.

The contractor is currently implementing the project packages.

* New Raw Material Warehouse Project

-Payment value in 2024 amounted to VND 15.089 billion, equivalent to
65.61% of the annual plan; the cumulative executed value from the beginning of the
project to the end of December 2024 was VND 342.085 billion.

-The Company continues warranty processes and the confirmation of
completion of equipment and construction warranties with the contractors. It is also
balancing and resolving outstanding payments to contractors in accordance with the
approved final settlements.

*+* Tam Dien Clay Mine Expansion Project — Phase 2

- The executed volume in 2024 was VND 1.070 billion; cumulative execution
from the start of the project to the end of December 2024 was VND 1.550 billion.

- Payments made in 2024 amounted to VND 1.273 billion, equivalent to 5.13%
of the annual plan; cumulative payments reached VND 1.476 billion by the end of
December 2024.

- The company is actively coordinating with the Compensation, Support, and
Resettlement Council to develop and approve the compensation and land clearance
plan.

II. OBJECTIVES AND BUSINESS PLAN FOR 2025
Economic Environment

The Government and the Prime Minister are making strong efforts to promote
robust economic growth in tandem with maintaining macroeconomic stability,
controlling inflation, ensuring major economic balances with high surpluses. The
goal is to accelerate and make breakthroughs to achieve a national GDP growth rate
of at least 8% in 2025 through a range of synchronized objectives and solutions, such
as implementing economic stimulus packages, expediting public investment
disbursement, adjusting exchange rates and interest rates appropriately, removing
obstacles in the implementation of real estate and social housing projects, focusing
on completing key national infrastructure systems, and promoting exports and

>R e 1%l
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consumption.
Cement Industry Qutlook

- Cement supply continues to significantly exceed demand (the country has
invested in 92 cement production lines with a total designed capacity of 122.34
million tons per year, while domestic demand in 2025 is forecasted to be around
70.5-72.5 million tons), resulting in continued fierce competition.

- Demand for bulk cement is increasingly higher than for bagged cement, which
continues to erode the brand advantage of VICEM Bim Son cement, significantly
impacting business efficiency.

- The export market for cement and clinker is forecast to remain challenging
due to the slow recovery of China’s real estate sector and surplus supply from
countries such as Indonesia, Pakistan, and the UAE, creating intense price
competition.

- Cement selling prices are decreasing while input material and fuel prices
remain high; electricity prices are rising; and additional costs such as bag recycling
are emerging — all of which reduce the profitability of cement manufacturing
companies.

1. Key Production and Business Targets for 2025

ndicator . _Year 2025
1. Clinker production: Ton 2,855,000
2. Consumption e 4,162,000
- Cement “ 3,552,000
- Clinker Gl 610,000
3. Total revenue Billion VND 3,783.813
4. Profit before tax «“ 45.046
5. Profit after tax « 45.046
6. State budget contribution “ 108.958
7. Dividend payout ratio % 0

2. Action Objectives
2.1. Production

- Closely coordinate sales performance and inventory management to develop
the most efficient operating plan for the two kilns, aligned with the structure and
types of coal used. Optimize kiln operations and clinker inventory levels to avoid
dumping clinker into storage yards. When shutting down kilns to reduce clinker
inventory, combine this with scheduled maintenance to ensure readiness and
maximize capacity upon restart.

- Increase the use of alternative materials such as fly ash, slag, and synthetic
gypsum in the production of clinker and cement to conserve non-renewable resources
while meeting economic efficiency and environmental targets as required by
regulations.

- Ensure raw material supply for production:

181
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+ Seek additional raw material sources for clinker production to ensure quality
and long-term, stable supply, such as: using weathered hill soil as a substitute for
iron-rich clay (to adjust Fe2Os content); using weathered laterite as a supplemental
source of SiO: (to replace increasingly scarce and fluctuating-quality silica-rich clay
from the Company’s own mines).

+ Accelerate land leasing process for Phase 2 of the Tam Dien clay mine and
Zone I of the Co Dam clay mine to expand black clay extraction areas for production
needs.

- Focus on equipment maintenance and repair to ensure stable operation and
improved productivity—especially in the cement grinding and packaging stages
(e.g., replacing the roller shell and liner plates of Cement Mill No. 1; repairing
conveyor line BCO3 to increase cement transport capacity to >350 tons/hour;
implementing solutions to improve bag cleanliness during loading; installing a jumbo
bag loading unit at the northern side of Packing Station 1; installing a bulk cement
silo at the Quang Tri Branch).

- Tightly control variable costs and repair expenses to reduce the production
cost of semi-finished and finished products. Maximize internal capabilities to
minimize outsourcing.

2.2. Sales

- Closely monitor actual market developments and flexibly apply sales policies
to increase sales volume and market share in various regions.

- Continue implementing policies to promote new products such as C91 and
New Elephant in areas where VICEM has low market share.

- Focus on customer care, contractor engagement, and strengthening the sales
network.

- For bulk cement: Seek and sign direct contracts with batching plants; boost
sales for large projects such as Quang Tri Airport and My Thuy Port in Quang Tri;
develop bulk cement products like PC40 and Sulfate-Resistant Cement Type II for
bridge and hydropower projects.

-For cement and clinker exports: Actively seek new orders and negotiate
favorable selling prices to ensure economic efficiency, especially for direct export
contracts.

- Continue applying advanced information technology solutions in sales;
implement the non-stop product dispatching system to optimize the delivery process.

-Review and restructure the field sales staff, providing training and
reassignments to gradually improve professional competence and meet market
demands.

2.3. Investment

The Company's Construction Investment Plan for 2025 has a projected work
volume value of VND 380.957 billion and a payment value of VND 210.415 billion,
including the following:

- Group B Project

Project implementation stage:

NR\Z0z <y
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Waste Heat Recovery Power Generation Project:

+ Work volume value: VND 353.668 billion

+ Payment value: VND 183.572 billion

+ Planned objectives for the year: Start project construction, install equipment,
conduct acceptance testing, and put the system into operation within 2025.

- Group C Projects

Project implementation stage:

Tam Dien clay mine project — Phase 2:

+ Work volume value: VND 26.000 billion

+ Payment value: VND 26.000 billion

+ Planned objectives for the year: Implement compensation and land clearance,
and complete legal procedures for land leasing due to the impact of the North—South
High-Speed Railway passing through the mine area.

Project preparation stage:

Yen Duyen 1 & Yen Duyen 2 limestone mine projects:
+ Work volume value: VND 0.496 billion

+ Payment value : VND 0.447 billion

+ Planned objectives for the year: Prepare exploration proposals and apply for
a mineral exploration license from the Ministry of Agriculture and Environment.

Renovation Project for Electrostatic Precipitators of Kiln No. 2 (36.20) and
Kiln No. 3 (36.1-06)):

+ Work volume value: VND 0.793 billion
+ Payment value :  VND 0.396 billion

+ Planned objectives for the year: Prepare a feasibility study report (FSR),
conduct verification and appraisal, and obtain investment approval for the project.

2.4. Organizational Work and Human Resources

- Continue to review and reorganize the workforce and staff structure in line
with actual conditions to maximize the efficiency of human resource management
and promote labor productivity.

-Review the organizational structure and the functions of all departments
throughout the Company with a focus on streamlining and adapting to the new
operational context.

- Continue to refine the salary distribution plan based on job titles and work
performance to motivate employees.

- Ongoing review, revision, and supplementation of internal regulations to
ensure legal compliance and alignment with the Company’s operations.

- Provide advanced and specialized training for leadership, management staff,
equipment operators, and maintenance technicians; conduct retraining for workers to
enable flexible and efficient labor allocation, aiming to gradually reduce the overall

N/
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workforce.
- Fully and accurately implement all policies and regimes related to employee
benefits and entitlements.

2.5. Information Technology

- Production Digitization: Continue researching and implementing data
integration solutions for Line 2, cement grinding, and packaging processes into the
production reporting system. Optimize the maintenance management system to
enhance user accessibility and fully leverage system data to support management and
decision-making.

- Sales Digitalization: Maintain the stability and security of the order placement
system, product dispatch system, and inkjet printing system. Provide support to
customers and related departments in using the system. Implement the non-stop
dispatch project.

-IT Infrastructure and Security: Expedite the deployment of servers and
firewall equipment to meet security requirements, resource needs, and ensure the
readiness and reliability of all systems.

2.6. Safety & Environment

- Regularly urge and remind all departments within the Company to strictly
comply with regulations and procedures on occupational safety, fire and explosion
prevention, and environmental protection—especially by enhancing inspection and
supervision across production lines.

- Complete the issuance of the environmental permit for the plant.

- Continue improving the environmental landscape by planting trees, managing
waste, organizing work areas, etc., to ensure a "Green — Clean — Beautiful" factory;
improve working conditions; and address pollution sources to protect the
environment.

The above is the Report on Business and Construction Investment Activities in
2024 and the Direction and Tasks for 2025 of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for review and
approval.

Sincerely thank you.
Recipients: ACTING CHIEF
- GMS; EXECUTIVE OFFICER

- BOD, Company’s Secretary;
- Archived: Office.

Le Huy Quan
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Thanh Hoa, . 2025

REPORT ON ACTIVITIES OF THE SUPERVISORY
BOARD IN 2024 AND OPERATION PLAN FOR 2025

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020-QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietham on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Bim Son Cement Joint
Stock Company;

Pursuant to the audit results of the 2024 financial statements of Bim Son Cement
Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to The inspection and supervision results of the Supervisory Board in
2024.

The Supervisory Board respectfully reports to the General Meeting of
Shareholders of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company on its activities and
supervision of company operations in 2024 and outlines the operation plan for 2025,
as follows:

I. ACTIVITIES OF THE SUPERVISORY BOARD IN 2024 AND
WORK PLAN FOR 2025

1. Activities of the Supervisory Board in 2024

- Held regular meetings and attended meetings of the Company's Board of
Directors.

- Inspected and supervised compliance with legal regulations and the
Company’s internal rules in the management and operation of business activities,
specifically:

+ Reviewed the reasonableness, legality, transparency, and prudence in the
management and operation of business activities; assessed the systematic nature,
consistency, and appropriateness of accounting, statistical work, and financial
reporting.

+ Monitored the implementation and results of the 2024 Annual General
Meeting resolutions and the resolutions of the Board of Directors.

+ Evaluated the completeness, legality, and accuracy of the Company’s
quarterly, semi-annual, and annual financial statements.




+ Reported on the assessment of the management performance of the Board
of Directors and Executive Management at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.

+ Supervised compliance with information disclosure regulations in
accordance with the law.

- Coordinated with the Board of Directors and the Executive Management in
the performance of duties, specifically:

+ Was invited to fully attend all meetings of the Company’s Board of
Directors.

+ Was fully provided with meeting minutes, resolutions, and decisions of the
Board of Directors related to the Company’s operational management.

+ The Supervisory Board was regularly provided with complete information
and documents related to the Company's operations and financial status on a
quarterly, semi-annual, and annual basis.

2. Orientation Plan for 2025

- Continue conducting inspections and supervision in accordance with legal
regulations and the Company's rules.

- Effectively perform the functions and duties of the Supervisory Board as
stipulated in the Company’s Charter, specifically:

+ Inspect the reasonableness, legality, honesty, and prudence in the
management and operation of business activities.

+ Monitor and urge the implementation of resolutions of the General Meeting
of Shareholders and the Board of Directors.

+ Periodically verify the accuracy and truthfulness of the financial statements.

+ Carry out other tasks in accordance with the functions and responsibilities
of the Supervisory Board.

- Conduct inspections in specific areas when deemed necessary or upon the
request of shareholders or groups of shareholders (if any) in accordance with
regulations.

II. RESULTS OF THE SUPERVISION OF THE BOARD OF
DIRECTORS’ ACTIVITIES

The Board of Directors assigned responsibilities to its members and oversaw
all areas of the Company’s operations; promptly resolved matters in line with market
developments and the actual business conditions of the Company.

In 2024, the Board of Directors held regular and extraordinary meetings in
accordance with the Company’s Charter. After each meeting, the Board issued
Resolutions based on the General Meeting of Shareholders’ Resolutions to guide and
assign tasks to the Executive Board. Specifically:

- Assessed the business performance of each quarter and set tasks for the
following quarter .
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- Directed functional departments to review and reduce costs, promote
savings, and prevent wastefulness .

Comment: Through the review of the Resolutions and Decisions of the Board
of Directors, it was found that all Resolutions and Decisions were aimed at the
common interests of the Company and ensured its developmental orientation in
accordance with the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders .

III. RESULTS OF SUPERVISION OVER THE EXECUTIVE
BOARD’S ACTIVITIES

The year 2024 was a particularly difficult year for the construction materials
industry in general and the Company in particular. The Executive Board made
considerable efforts in managing business operations, helping to maintain the
Company’s activities, create jobs, and ensure the livelihoods of employees at the best
possible level under very challenging conditions. Specifically:

1. Regarding Production and Business Performance
- Production:
+ Clinker: 2,800,410 tons, reaching 120.1% of the target set in the Resolution

+ Cement (including outsourced processing): 3,554,195 tons, reaching 119.9%
of the Resolution target.

- Sales volume: Total : 3,794,924 tons, achieving 115% of the target;
+ Of which: Clinker: 260,075 tons, reaching 77.6% of the target;

+ Cement (including outsourced processing): 3,534,849 tons, reaching 119.2%
of the target.

- Total revenue: VND 3,499.55 billion, reaching 113.1% of the target.
- Profit before tax: VND 3.61 billion.

- Profit after tax: VND 3.61 billion.

2. Regarding Financial and Accounting Work

- The Executive Board strictly directed the preparation of quarterly, semi-
annual, and annual financial statements in a timely manner, in accordance with
Vietnamese accounting standards and legal regulations.

- The Company actively and proactively managed cash flow to ensure
adequate capital for business operations, investments, and debt repayments. It also
proactively negotiated with credit institutions to reduce loan interest rates and sought
funding sources with reasonable interest rates to improve the Company’s financial
efficiency.




3. Regarding Labor and Wages

Comparison (%)
Actual
2024 Actual Actual Aml'::]lt amount
Indicator Unit Pl amount in | amount fm;:)z 4/ in 2024/
o 2024 in2023 | ™ Actual
2024
Plan amount
in 2023
1. Total smployees People 1,160 L35 | 1,192]  98% |  95%
(Dec 31)
2. Total salary fund | Million VND 267,334 267,334 | 277,270 100% 96%
3. Average number Peaple 1,180 1,163 | 1222|  99%|  95%
of employees
4. Average monthly | Million VND 18.9 19.2 18.9 101% 101%
salary /People/month

4. On Project Investment Activities

- The executed value was VND 4.041 billion, reaching 11.57% of the planned
target;

- The disbursed value was VND 16.784 billion, reaching 17.36% of the
planned target.

General Comment: The Executive Board has effectively fulfilled its duties,
ensuring the efficiency and safety of the Company’s operations. Within its authority
and responsibilities, the Executive Board has strictly implemented the Resolutions
of the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Company’s Board of Directors.

IV. APPRAISAL OF THE SEPARATE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR
2024

1. Preparation and Audit of the Financial Statements

The Company’s 2024 financial statements were prepared in accordance with
the prevailing Vietnamese accounting standards and regulations.

The 2024 financial statements were audited by Deloitte Vietnam Co., Ltd., an
auditing firm approved by the State Securities Commission of Vietnam to audit listed
companies.

The auditor’s opinion on the Company’s 2024 financial statements was an
unqualified (clean) opinion, indicating that the financial position as of December 31,
2024, the results of operations, and cash flows for the year were fairly and accurately
presented in accordance with Vietnamese accounting standards and relevant current
regulations.

2. The Company’s Financial Position as of December 31, 2024

2.1. Financial analysis indicators
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Indicator Unit Year 2024 Year 2023
1. Asset structure
- Long-term assets / Total assets % 79.6 82.7
- Short-term assets / Total assets % 20.4 173
2. Capital structure
- Liabilities / Total capital % 43.2 47.1
- Owner’s equity / Total capital % 56.8 52.9
3. Liquidity:
- Quick ratio Times 0.16 0.17
- Current ratio Times 0.48 0.38

4. Capital efficiency
- Net profit after tax / Owner’s equity % 0.18 -10.5

2.2. Comments and Evaluation of the Financial Position as of December 31,2024

- The liquidity ratios have improved compared to 2023 but remains at a low
level.

- The Company’s asset structure is mainly composed of long-term assets. Its
net working capital is negative, indicating that the Company is using short-term
funding to finance long-term assets.

V. IMPLEMENTATION OF THE RESOLUTION OF THE ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS(AMG)

1. Implementation of Business Targets Set in the AGM Resolution

In 2024, the Company made exceptional efforts to overcome challenges and
successfully fulfill the targets set out in the 2024 AGM Resolution, including:

- Total revenue reached VND 3,499.55 billion, an increase of VND 404
billion, achieving 113.1% of the target;

- Profit before tax was VND 3.6 billion, an increase of VND 162.5 billion
compared to the Resolution (the 2024 plan initially projected a loss of VND 158.9
billion).

2. Remuneration, Bonuses, and Other Benefits for the Board of Directors and
Supervisory Board Members

- The Company paid remuneration to members of the Board of Directors and

Supervisory Board in 2024 in accordance with the levels approved by the 2024
AGM.

3. Other Issues

Waste Heat Power Generation Project: In 2024, the Company organized
bidding and selected a contractor for Package No. 1: “Supply of design, materials
and equipment, general construction and technical services for the project.” A
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contract was signed with the selected contractor, and the implementation of the
project has commenced.

VI. RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the inspection and supervision of the Company’s operations, the
Supervisory Board has the following recommendations:

1. Production Operations

Continue to closely follow actual conditions, maintain close coordination
between production and sales; manage procurement and inventory to flexibly select
the most efficient kiln operation plans corresponding to the structure and type of coal
used; optimize operations to reduce consumption rates, especially heat and
electricity; promptly handle the backlog of clinker to prevent quality degradation and
limit further clinker stockpiling.

2. Sales Operations

Closely monitor the distribution network; flexibly apply policies in a timely
manner, targeting the right customers and regions to increase output, market share,
and coverage.

3. Financial Management

Balance cash flow to formulate appropriate capital mobilization and
utilization plans, ensure reasonable short-term debt levels to meet capital needs for
business operations, investment activities, and debt obligations.

Regularly review receivables to ensure they do not exceed guarantee limits
and maintain business security. Implement measures to handle, recover, and
minimize bad debts and doubtful accounts.

4. Investment and Construction

Closely monitor project progress, ensuring safety, cost-effectiveness,
efficiency, and compliance with legal and internal regulations.

5. Other Matters

- Conduct a review and restructuring of the workforce to ensure lean and
efficient operations. Develop KPIs for employees to improve work performance and
link income to work results, thereby creating motivation.

- Actively work with relevant authorities to promptly resolve unused land
plots, helping to reduce Company expenses.

- Practice thrift and prevent waste in all areas; implement synchronized
solutions to reduce costs and improve business efficiency, including researching and
adopting modern scientific and technological advances in operations to avoid falling
behind and to enhance the Company’s competitiveness.

This is the Supervisory Board’s report on the supervision of the Company’s
business operations, and the activities of the Board of Directors, the General
Director, and the Supervisory Board in 2024, along with the 2025 operation plan.
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We respectfully submit this to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval.

Sincerely thank you./.
Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE
- GMS; SUPERVISORY BOARD
- Archive: Office, Supervisory Board. HEAD OF THE BOARD

Ta Huu Hien
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\ CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
SON CEMENT JSC

! -AM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
» 'l

Thanh Hoa, . 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the Approval of the Selection of the Auditing Firm
for the 2025 Financial Statements

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020-QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of Bim Son Cement Joint
Stock Company;

Pursuant to Decision No. 2730/0P-BTC dated November | 5, 2024, of the
Ministry of Finance approving auditing firms and practicing auditors authorized to
audit public interest entities in 2025.

To ensure timely implementaion and legal compliance in the selection of the
auditing firm for the Company's 2025 financial statements, while safeguarding the rights
and interests of shareholders, the selected auditing firm must be independent, reputable,
and approved to audit listed companies in accordance with securities regulations. The
audit fee must be reasonable and aligned with the scope, content, and schedule required
by the Company.

The Supervisory Board proposes to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders authorize the Board of Directors to select one of the following three
auditing firms:

1. Deloitte Vietnam Audit company Limited;
2. An Viet Auditing Company Limited;
3. VACO Auditing Company Limited.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for consideration
and decision./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE
- General Meeting of Shareholders; SUPERVISORY BOARD
- Board of Directors; HEAD OF THE BOARD

- Archive: Supervisory Board,
Company’s Secretary .

Ta Huu Hien




VIETNAM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
M SON CEMENT JSC

Thanh Hoa, , 2025

PROPOSAL
Amendments and Supplements to the Company’s Charter
on Organization and Operation

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company.

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020-QH14 dated June 17, 2020,
and the guiding documents on the implementation of the Law on Enterprises;

Pursuant to the Charter on Organization and Operation of the Company;

Pursuant to Official Letter No. 285/VICEM-HPTYV dated March 3, 2025, of the
VICEM Members' Council regarding the update, amendment, and supplementation of
regulations on profit distribution in the Company’s Charter in accordance with
Decree No. 167/2024/ND-CP dated December 26, 2024, of the Government;

Pursuant to Official Letter No. 524/VICEM-HPTV dated April 3, 2025, of the
VICEM Members' Council regarding the amendment and supplementation of the
Charter of joint stock companies with VICEM capital contribution at the 2025 Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders;

Pursuant to the actual business and production situation of the Company.

The Board of Directors respectfully submits to the General Meeting of
Shareholders for consideration and approval the amendments and supplementations
to certain articles of the Charter on Organization and Operation of Bim Son Cement
Joint Stock Company (attached with details of the proposed amendments and
supplements).

The amended Charter on Organization and Operation of the Company shall take
effect immediately upon approval by the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD OF
: gxfc; of Directors; DIRECTORS
- Supervisory Board; CHAIRMAN

- Archived: Office, Company’s Secretary.

Le Huu Ha
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VIETNAM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
BIM SON CEMENT JSC

Thanh Hoa, date , month ,2025

DRAFT

PROPOSAL
Regarding the Approval of the Audited Financial Statements for 2024

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company
Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of Bim Son Cement
Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the audit results of the 2024 financial statements of Bim Son
Cement Joint Stock Company.

The Board of Directors of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company respectfully
submits to the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders for approval of the
2024 audited financial statements, audited by Deloitte Vietnam Audit company
Limited. The 2024 financial statements have been publicly disclosed as required and
posted on the Company's website (https://ximangbimson.com.vn), including:

1. Auditor’s Report

2. Balance Sheet

3. Income Statement

4. Cash Flow Statement

5. Notes to the Financial Statements

A summary of the 2024 audited financial statements is attached to this
Proposal.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for review and
approval.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
- General Meeting of Shareholders; OF DIRECTORS
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board; CHAIRMAN

- Archived: Office, Finance &
Accounting Dept.

Le Huu Ha
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BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward, Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Board of Executive Officers of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company Ltd. (the “Company”) presents this report
together with the Company’s separate financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The members of the Boards of Directors and Executive Officers of the Company during the year and to the date of
this report are as follows:

Board of Directors

Mr. Le Huu Ha Chairman

Mr. Nguyen Minh Duc Member

Mr. Le Huy Quan Member

Mr. Nguyen Truong Thu Member

Mr. Ngo Duc Viet Independent Member
Ms. Le Thi Khanh Independent Member

Board of Executive Officers

Mr. Le Huy Quan Acting Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Pham Van Phuong Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Nguyen Chi Thuc Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Nguyen Sy Cuong Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Nguyen Duc Son Chief Accountant

THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Executive Officers of the Company is responsible for preparing the separate financial statements, which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and its financial
performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to financial reporting. In preparing these separate
financial statements, the Board of Executive Officers is required to:

* Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

* Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

¢ State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the separate financial statements;

e Prepare the separate financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue in business; and

e Design and implement an effective internal control system for the purpose of properly preparing and presenting
the separate financial statements so as to minimize errors and frauds.

The Board of Executive Officers is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose,
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and that the separate financial
statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations
relating to financial reporting. The Board of Executive Officers is also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the
Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of frauds and other irregularities.
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BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward, Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS (Continued)

The Board of Executive Officers confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing
these separate financial statements.

For and on behalf of the Board of Executive Ofﬁcers,ﬁ

Le Huy Quan
Acting Chief Executive Officer

28 February 2025
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' IMPACT THAT °© Dong Da District, Hanoi, Vietnam
MATTERS | Tel:+84 24 7105 0000
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- :ij www.deloitte.com/vn

No.:0h 3 /VN1A-HN-BC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: The Shareholders
The Board of Directors and Board of Executive Officers
of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying separate financial statements of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company (the
“Company”), prepared on 28 February 2025 as set out from page 05 to page 34, which comprise the balance sheet
as at 31 December 2024, and the statement of income, statement of cash flows for the year then ended and a
summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

The Board of Executive Officers’ Responsibility for the separate Financial Statements

The Board of Executive Officers is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these separate financial
statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal
regulations relating to financial reporting and for such internal control as the Board of Executive Officers determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these separate financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply with
ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the separate
financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
separate financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the assessment
of the risks of material misstatement of the separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Company’s preparation and fair
presentation of the separate financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates made by The Board of Executive Officers, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the separate financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL"), its global network of member firms, and their related entities (collectively, the
“Deloitte organization”). DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) and each of its member firms and related entities are legally separate and independent
entities, which cannot obligate or bind each other in respect of third parties. DTTL and each DTTL member firm and related entity is liable only for its own
acts and omissions, and not those of each other. DTTL does not provide services t&clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2024, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in

Deputy General Director
Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 0929-2024-001-1

DELOITTE VIETNAM AUDIT COMPANY LIMITED

28 February 2025
Hanoi, 5.R. Vietnam

Nguyen Tien Quoc

Auditor

Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 3008-2024-001-1




FORM B 01-DN
Issued under Circular No.200/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward,
Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024
Unit: VND
ASSETS Codes Notes Closing balance Opening balance
A. CURRENT ASSETS 100 665,517,528,385 604,828,872,974
I Cash and cash equivalents 110 4 150,408,885,062 187,878,443,407
1. Cash 111 150,408,885,062 187,878,443,407
Il.  Short-term receivables 130 58,639,271,252 74,801,450,556
1. Short-term trade receivables 131 5 79,724,834,576 97,917,178,017
2.  Short-term advances to suppliers 132 6 67,299,435,726 70,422,875,726
3. Other short-term receivables 136 7 6,638,043,050 4,984,438,913
4. Provision for short-term doubtful debts 137 8 (95,023,042,100) (98,523,042,100)
lll. Inventories 140 9 438,021,589,208 333,170,889,368
1. Inventories 141 464,078,939,965 360,554,117,481
2. Provision for devaluation of inventories 149 (26,057,350,757) (27,383,228,113)
IV. Other short-term assets 150 18,447,782,863 8,978,089,643
1.  Short-term prepayments 151 10 14,357,422,117 7,466,160,970
2. Value added tax deductibles 152 3,588,637,450 1,010,205377
3. Taxes and other receivables from the 153 17 501,723,296 501,723} 6
State budget ;’:
B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 200 2,594,242,665,410 2,884,422,15'i 07
. Long-term receivables 210 9,668,784,430 8,954,228,643
1.  Other long-term receivables 216 7 9,668,784,430 8,954,228,643
1. Fixed assets 220 2,463,334,871,028 2,759,620,579,463
1.  Tangible fixed assets 221 11 2,454,193,789,256 2,750,191,078,576
- Cost 222 7,588,997,597,709 7,625,984,454,359
- Accumulated depreciation 223 (5,134,803,808,453) (4,875,793,375,783)
2. Intangible assets 227 12 9,141,081,772 9,429,500,887
- Cost 228 12,580,505,603 12,580,505,603
- Accumulated amortisation 229 (3,439,423,831) (3,151,004,716)
lll. Long-term assets in progress 240 15,638,168,536 12,831,922,018
1. Construction in progress 242 13 15,638,168,536 12,831,922,018
IV. Long-term financial investments 250
1 Investments in subsidiaries 251 14 116,190,198,618 116,190,198,618
Provision for impairment of long-term 254 14 (116,190,198,618) (116,190,198,618)
financial investments
V.  Other long-term assets 260 105,600,841,416 103,015,427,283
1 Long-term prepayments 261 10 97,527,282,411 94,941,868,278
Long-term reserved spare parts 263 9 8,073,559,005 8,073,559,005
TOTAL ASSETS (270=100+200) 270 3,259,760,193,795 3,489,251,030,381

The accompany notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements
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BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward,
Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

FORM B 01-DN

Issued under Circular No.200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
RESOURCES Codes Notes Closing balance Opening balance
C. LIABILITIES 300 1,409,664,731,646 1,642,762,178,765
I Current liabilities 310 1,400,740,081,032 1,605,722,715,594
1.  Short-term trade payables 31t 15 685,678,970,126 671,756,026,472
2. Short-term advances from customers 312 16 52,039,937,670 27,911,064,233
3.  Taxes and amounts payable to the 313 17 5,060,647,500 36,750,838,087
State budget
4, Payables to employees 314 53,245,860,958 59,254,753,741
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 18 27,981,148,398 19,025,871,316
6. Other current payables 319 19 41,034,655,053 57,344,557,697
T Short-term loans and obligations 320 20 527,317,832,706 707,553,594,403
under finance leases
8. Bonus and welfare funds 322 8,381,028,621 26,126,009,645
Il. Long-term liabilities 330 8,924,650,614 37,039,463,171
1.  Long-term loans and obligations 338 20 7,000,000 29,008,386,901
under finance leases
2. Long-term provisions 342 8,917,650,614 8,031,076,270
D. EQUITY 400 1,850,095,462,149 1,846,488,851,616
I, Owners' equity 410 21 1,850,095,462,149 1,846,488,851,616
1 Owners’ contributed capital 411 1,232,098,120,000 1,232,098,120,000
- Ordinary shares carrying voting rights 411a 1,232,098,120,000 1,232,098,120,000
2. Share premium 412 57,006,601,053 57,006,601,053
3. Investment and development fund 418 728,041,311,370 728,041,311,370
4.  (Losses) accumulated 421 (167,050,570,274) (170,657,180,807)
- (Loss)/Retained earnings accumulated 421a (170,657,180,807) 34,487,695,244
to the prior year end
- Retained earnings/(Loss) of the current 421b 3,606,610,533 (205,144,876,051)
year
TOTAL RESOURCES (440=300+400) 440 3,259,760,193,795 3,489,251,030,381

Lt

&z

Le Huy Quan
Acting Chief Executive Officer

Pham Thi Thu Huong
Preparer

Nguyen Duc Son
Chief Accountant

28 February 2025

The accompany notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements
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BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward,
Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

FORM B 02-DN

Issued under Circular No0.200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

ITEMS Codes Notes
1. Gross revenue from goods sold 01 24
2. Deductions 02 24
3. Net revenue from goods sold (10=01-02) 10 24
4.  Cost of sales 11 25
5. Gross profit from goods sold (20=10-11) 20
6.  Financial income 21 27
7.  Financial expenses 22 28
- In which: Interest expense 23
8.  Selling expenses 25 29
9. General and administration expenses 26 29
10. Operating (losses) 30
(30=20+(21-22)-(25+26))
11. Other income 31 30
12. Other expenses 32 30
13. Profit/(loss) from other activities 40
(40=31-32)
14. Accounting profit/(loss) before tax 50
(50=30+40)
15. Current corporate income tax expense 51 31
16. Net profit/(loss) after corporate income 60

INCOME STATEMENT

For the year ended 31 December 2024

tax (60=50-51)

s

Current year

Unit: VND

Prior year

3,625,325,908,207
137,347,437,769
3,487,978,470,438
3,181,218,771,635
306,759,698,803
2,846,339,901
28,501,207,327
28,322,575,190
176,687,291,464
108,900,786,036
(4,483,246,123)

8,720,890,460

630,811,582
8,090,078,878
3,606,832,755

222,222

3,196,185,460,631
114,820,088,162
3,081,365,372,469
2,965,890,161,195
115,475,211,274
85,716,195
37,128,942,268
37,116,111,445
148,083,124,011
118,160,651,503
(187,811,790,313)

1,602,244,592
18,930,214,476
(17,327,969,884)
(205,139,760,197)

5,115,854

3,606,610,533

(205,144,876,051)

Pham Thi Thu Huong
Preparer

Nguyen Duc Son
Chief Accountant

Le Huy Quan
Acting Chief Executive Officer

28 February 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements
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BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward,
Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

FORM B 03-DN

Issued under Circular No.200/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024

ITEMS

I CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Profit/(Loss) before tax

=

2.  Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets

and investment properties

Provisions

Foreign exchange gain arising from translating foreign
currency items

(Gain) from investing activities

Interest expense

3. Operating profit before movements in working capital

Decreases in receivables

(Increase)/decrease in inventories
Increase/(decrease) in payables (excluding accrued
loan interest and corporate income tax payable)
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses

Interest paid

Corporate income tax paid

Other cash outflows

Net cash generated by operating activities

Il CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

1.  Acquisition and construction of fixed assets
and other long-term assets

2.  Proceeds from sale, disposal of fixed assets
and other long-term assets
Net cash (used in) investing activities

Il. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1 Proceeds from borrowings
2. Repayment of borrowings
3 Dividends and profits paid
Net cash (used in)/generated by financing activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash (50=20+30+40)

Cash at the beginning of the year
Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates

Cash at the end of the year (70=50+60+61)

U

Codes

01

02

03
04

05
06
08
09
10
11

12
14
15
17
20

21

22

30

33
34
36
40

50

60
61

70

Unit: VND

Current year Prior year
3,606,832,755 (205,139,760,197)
308,002,665,388 303,246,617,747

(3,939,303,012)
(332,433,113)

(6,601,040,000)
28,322,575,190
329,059,297,208
16,320,008,756
(103,524,822,484)
16,551,661,440

(9,476,675,280)
(29,313,597,900)
(222,222)
(17,744,981,024)
201,870,668,494

(22,079,538,193)

6,649,090,909

(15,430,447,284)

1,641,983,810,219
(1,851,220,958,817)
(15,005,064,070)
(224,242,212,668)

(37,801,991,458)

187,878,443,407
332,433,113

3,139,933,401

37,116,111,445
138,362,902,396
54,346,602,665
268,403,512,586
(362,031,225,071)

20,617,202,487
(40,713,980,007)
(23,695,861,679)

(26,647,214,442)
28,641,938,935

(112,763,511,439)

(112,763,511,439)

1,563,244,431,329

(1,317,057,962,313)

(16,487,080,110)
229,699,388,906

145,577,816,402
42,300,627,005

e —

Pham Thi Thu Huong
Preparer

Nguyen Duc Son
Chief Accountant

Le Huy Quan

Acting Chief Executive Officer

28 February 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these separate financial statements
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BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward, Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The Board of Executive Officers of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company Ltd. (the “Company”) presents this report
together with the Company’s consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024.

THE BOARDS OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

The members of the Boards of Directors and Executive Officers of the Company during the year and to the date of
this report are as follows:

Board of Directors

Mr. Le Huu Ha Chairman
Mr. Nguyen Minh Duc Member
Mr. Le Huy Quan Member
Mr. Nguyen Truong Thu Member
Mr. Ngo Duc Viet Independent Member
Ms. Le Thi Khanh Independent Member

Board of Executive Officers

Mr. Le Huy Quan Acting Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Pham Van Phuong Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Nguyen Chi Thuc Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Nguyen Sy Cuong Deputy Chief Executive Officer
Mr. Nguyen Duc Son Chief Accountant

THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS’ STATEMENT OF RESPONSIBILITY

The Board of Executive Officers of the Company is responsible for preparing the consolidated financial statements,
which give a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and
its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to consolidated
financial reporting. In preparing these consolidated financial statements, the Board of Executive Officers is required
to:

e Select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

e  Make judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

s State whether applicable accounting principles have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the consolidated financial statements;

e Prepare the consolidated financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to
presume that the Company will continue in business; and

e Design and implement an effective internal control system for the purpose of properly preparmg and presenting
the consolidated financial statements so as to minimize errors and frauds.

The Board of Executive Officers is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept, which disclose,
with reasonable accuracy at any time, the consolidated financial position of the Company and that the consolidated
financial statements comply with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and legal
regulations relating to consolidated financial reporting. The Board of Executive Officers is also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
frauds and other irregularities.




BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward, Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

STATEMENT OF THE BOARD OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS (Continued)

The Board of Executive Officers confirms that the Company has complied with the above requirements in preparing
these consolidated financial statements.

Acting Chief Executive Officer

28 February 2025
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To: The Shareholders
The Board of Directors and Board of Executive Officers
of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company (the
“Company”), prepared on 28 February 2025 as set out from page 05 to page 37, which comprise the consolidated
balance sheet as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Board of Executive Officers’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Board of Executive Officers is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting regime for enterprises and
legal regulations relating to consolidated financial reporting and for such internal control as the Board of Executive
Officers determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves perfarming procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the Company’s
preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Company’s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by the Board of Executive Officers, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Deloitte refers to one or more of Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu Limited (“DTTL”), its global network of member firms, and their related entities (collectively, the
“Deloitte organization”). DTTL (also referred to as “Deloitte Global”) and each of its member firms and related entities are legally separate and independent
entities, which cannot obligate or bind each other in respect of third parties. DTTL and each DTTL member firm and related entity is liable only for its own
acts and omissions, and not those of each other. DTTL dees not provide services tg clients. Please see www.deloitte.com/about to learn more.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT (Continued)

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the consolidated
financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024, and its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, accounting
regime for enterprises and legal regulations relating to consolidated financial reporting.

Pham Nam Phong

Deputy General Director

Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 0929-2024-001-1

DELOITTE VIETNAM AUDIT COMPANY LIMITED

28 February 2025
Hanaoi, S.R. Vietnam

Nguyen Tien Quoc

Auditor

Audit Practising Registration Certificate
No. 3008-2024-001-1



BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward,
Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

FORM B 01-DN/HN

Issued under Circular No.202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

V.

b

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2024

ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS

Cash
Cash

Short-term receivables
Short-term trade receivables
Short-term advances to suppliers
Other short-term receivables
Provision for short-term
doubtful debts

Inventories
Inventories
Provision for devaluation of inventories

Other short-term assets
Short-term prepayments

Value added tax deductibles
Taxes and other receivables from
the State budget

NON-CURRENT ASSETS
Long-term receivables
Other long-term receivables

Fixed assets

Tangible fixed assets

- Cost

- Accumulated depreciation
Intangible assets

- Cost

- Accumulated amortisation

Long-term assets in progress
Construction in progress

Other long-term assets
Long-term prepayments
Long-term reserved spare parts
Goodwill

TOTAL ASSETS (270=100+200)

Codes Notes

100

110
111

130
131
132
136
137

140
141
149

150
151
152
153

200
210
216

220
221
222
223
227
228
229

240
242

260
261
263
269

270

Closing balance

Unit: VND

Opening balance

672,229,543,798

a 150,704,730,540
150,704,730,540

611,981,257,995

188,202,362,327
188,202,362,327

61,117,412,886 77,351,509,524

5 50,051,128,288 68,315,849,729
6 14,025,028,571 13,648,468,571
7 8,003,245,714 6,349,180,911
8 (10,961,989,687) (10,961,989,687)
9 441,953,600,896 337,304,683,901
468,010,951,653 364,687,912,014
(26,057,350,757) (27,383,228,113)
18,453,799,476 9,122,702,243

10 14,357,422,117 7,466,160,970
3,588,637,450 1,141,300,039

17 507,739,909 515,241,234
2,740,142,105,027 3,044,732,183,412
9,668,784,430 8,954,228,643

7 9,668,784,430 8,954,228,643
2,597,590,850,642 2,902,908,409,002

1 2,588,449,768,870 2,893,478,908,115
7,907,916,466,621 7,940,179,627,665
(5,319,466,697,751)  (5,046,700,719,550)

12 9,141,081,772 9,429,500,887
12,580,505,603 12,580,505,603
(3,439,423,831) (3,151,004,716)
15,638,168,536 16,647,506,861

13 15,638,168,536 16,647,506,861
117,244,301,419 116,222,038,906

10 109,170,742,414 108,148,479,901
9 8,073,559,005 8,073,559,005
14 - -
3,412,371,648,825 3,656,713,441,407

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward,
Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

FORM B 01-DN/HN

Issued under Circular No.202/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

RESOURCES Codes Notes
C. LIABILITIES 300
I Current liabilities 310
1.  Short-term trade payables 311 15
2. Short-term advances from customers 312 16
3. Taxes and amounts payable to the 313 17
State budget
4.  Payables to employees 314
5. Short-term accrued expenses 315 13
6. Other current payables 319 19
7. Short-term loans and obligations 320 20
under finance leases
8. Bonus and welfare funds 322
Il.  Long-term liabilities 330
1. Long-term loans and obligations under 338 20
finance leases
2. Long-term provisions 342
D. EQUITY 400
l.  Owners' equity 410 21
1. Owners’ contributed capital 411
- Ordinary shares carrying voting rights 411a
2.  Share premium 412
3.  Investment and development fund 418
4. (Losses accumulated) 421
- (Loss)/Retained earnings accumulated 421a
to the prior year end
- (Loss) of the current year 421b
5.  Non-controlling interests 429
TOTAL RESOURCES (440=300+400) 440

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Continued)

As at 31 December 2024

LA

Closing balance

Unit: VND

Opening balance

1,635,582,933,110

1,611,658,282,496
724,747,279,748
52,039,937,670
5,246,422,290

53,598,285,958
114,296,175,192
49,795,894,512
603,550,758,505

8,383,528,621

23,924,650,614
15,007,000,000

8,917,650,614
1,776,788,715,715

1,776,788,715,715
1,232,098,120,000
1,232,098,120,000
57,006,601,053
728,041,311,370
(203,418,275,978)

1,871,791,299,592

1,819,751,836,421
712,011,152,180
27,911,064,233
36,750,838,087

59,871,013,420
106,497,531,026
65,995,207,628
784,586,520,202

26,128,509,645

52,039,463,171
44,008,386,901

8,031,076,270
1,784,922,141,815

1,784,922,141,815
1,232,098,120,000
1,232,098,120,000
57,006,601,053
728,041,311,370
(197,196,538,377)

(197,196,538,377) 30,287,537,280
(6,221,737,601) (227,484,075,657)
(36,939,040,730) (35,027,352,231)
3,412,371,648,825 3,656,713,441,407

Pham Thi Thu Huong
Preparer

Nguyen Duc Son
Chief Accountant

Le Huy Quan
Acting Chief Executive Officer

28 February 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward,
Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

FORM B 02-DN/HN

Issued under Circular No.202/2014/TT-BTC

dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Codes Notes

ITEMS
1. Gross revenue from goods sold 01
2.  Deductions 02
3. Netrevenue from goods sold (10=01) 10
4.  Cost of sales 11
5.  Gross profit from goods sold (20=10-11) 20
6.  Financial income 21
7.  Financial expenses 22
- In which: Interest expense 23
8.  Selling expenses 25
9.  General and administration expenses 26
10. Operating (loss) 30
(30=20+(21-22)-(25+26))
11. Other income 31
12. Other expenses 32
13. Profit/(loss) from other activities 40
(40=31-32)
14. Accounting (loss) before tax 50
(50=30+40)
15. Current corporate income tax expense 51
16. Net (loss) after corporate income 60
tax (60=50-51)
(Loss) after tax attributable to Holding 61
Company
(Loss) after tax attributable to non- 62
controlling shareholders
17. Basic (loss) per share 70

U

24
24

25

27
28

29
29

30

31

32

Unit: VND

Current year Prior year
3,625,325,908,207 3,196,185,460,631
137,347,437,769 114,820,088,162
3,487,978,470,438 3,081,365,372,469
3,187,606,110,821 2,972,422,202,204
300,372,359,617 108,943,170,265
2,846,609,856 86,117,735
36,561,516,074 49,299,710,134
36,067,665,018 49,286,879,311
176,687,291,464 148,083,124,011
116,502,422,715 124,874,241,528
(26,532,260,780) (213,227,787,673)

19,123,743,717

724,686,815
18,399,056,902
(8,133,203,878)

222,222

2,016,714,269
22,320,290,110
(20,303,575,841)
(233,531,363,514)

5,115,854

(8,133,426,100)

(233,536,479,368)

(6,221,737,601)

(1,911,688,499)

(50)

(227,484,075,657)
(6,052,403,711)

{(1,846)

Pham Thi Thu Huong
Preparer

Nguyen Duc Son
Chief Accountant

Le Huy Quan
Acting Chief Executive Officer

28 February 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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FORM B 03-DN/HN
Issued under Circular No.202/2014/TT-BTC
dated 22 December 2014 of the Ministry of Finance

BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY
Quarter 7, Ba Dinh Ward,
Bim Son Town, Thanh Hoa Province

CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2024

Unit: VND
ITEMS Codes Notes Current year Prior year
. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
1. (Loss) before tax 01 (8,133,203,878)  (233,531,363,514)
2. Adjustments for:
Depreciation and amortisation of fixed assets 02 321,758,210,919 317,764,706,463
Provisions 03 (439,303,012) 5,318,143,910
Foreign exchange gain arising from translating foreign 04 (332,433,113) =
currency items
(Gain) from investing activities 05 (6,601,040,000) -
Interest expense 06 36,067,665,018 49,286,879,311
3. Operating profit before movements in working 08 342,319,895,934 138,838,366,170
capital
Decreases in receivables 09 15,642,407,482 55,350,556,564
(Increase)/decrease in inventories 10 (103,323,039,639) 268,975,206,019
Increase/(decrease) in payables (excluding accrued 11 2,975,656,081  (359,972,708,064)
loan interest and corporate income tax payable)
(Increase)/decrease in prepaid expenses 12 (7,913,523,660) 16,538,976,894
Interest paid 14 (29,313,597,900) (40,713,980,007)
Corporate income tax paid 15 (222,222) (23,695,861,679)
Other cash outflows 17 (17,744,981,024) (26,647,214,442)
Net cash generated by operating activities 20 202,642,595,052 28,673,341,455
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 2
1. Acquisition and construction of fixed assets 21 (22,079,538,193)  (112,763,511,48
and other long-term assets =
2. Proceeds from sale, disposal of fixed assets 22 6,649,090,909
and other long-term assets
Net cash (used in) investing activities 30 (15,430,447,284) (112,763,511,439)
. CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
1. Proceeds from borrowings 33 1,647,583,810,219 1,578,244,431,329
2. Repayment of borrowings 34 (1,857,620,958,817) (1,332,071,593,3880)
3. Dividends and profits paid 36 (15,005,064,070) (16,487,080,110)
Net cash (used in)/generated by financing activities 40 (225,042,212,668) 229,685,757,339
Net (decrease)/increase in cash (50=20+30+40) 50 (37,830,064,900) 145,595,587,355
Cash at the beginning of the year 60 188,202,362,327 42,606,774,972
Effects of changes in foreign exchange rates 61 -
Cash at the end of the year (70=50+60+61) 70 188,202,362,327

¥

Pham Thi Thu Huong
Preparer

Nguyen Duc Son
Chief Accountant

Le Huy Quan

Chief Executive Officer

28 February 2025

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements
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ENAM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
i CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
IM SON CEMENT JSC

Thanh Hoa, , 2025

PROPOSAL
Regarding the Approval of the 2024 profit distribution plan

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to Circular No.200/2014/TT-BTC dated December 22, 2014 of the
Ministry of Finance;

Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of Bim Son Cement
Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the 2024 audited financial statements of Bim Son Cement Joint
Stock Company.

The Board of Directors of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company respectfully
submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders the profit indicators for 2024, as
follows:

No. Item Amount (VND)
Total undistributed profit after tax as of
I December 31, 2024 (167,050,570,274)
Undistributed profit after tax for 2023 (170,657,180,807)
2 | Profit after tax in 2024 3,606,610,533

Accordingly, the Board of Directors proposes that the General Meeting of
Shareholders does not distribute the profit for 2024.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
- General Meeting of Shareholders; OF DIRECTORS
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board; CHAIRMAN
- Archived: Office, Finance & Accounting
Dept.
Le Huu Ha




AM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
JIM SON CEMENT JSC

Thanh Hoa, , 2025

PROPOSAL
On the Remuneration Payment for the Board of Directors, Board of
Supervisors, Company Secretary, Salary for the General Director and Other
Managers in 2024; Remuneration and Salary Plan for 2025

To: The General Meeting of Shareholders of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company

Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises No. 59/2020/QH14 passed by the National
Assembly of the Socialist Republic of Vietnam on June 17, 2020;

Pursuant to the Charter of Organization and Operation of Bim Son Cement
Joint Stock Company;

Pursuant to the 2024 business business performance results and the 2023
business plan of the Company.

The Board of Directors of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company respectfully
submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders the implementation of the
remuneration of the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors, Company Secretary,

salary for the General Director and other managers in 2024 and the remuneration
plan for 2025, as follows:

1. Remuneration Payment for 2024

. Remuneration Total Amount
. Fosition (VND/person/month) (VND)
i | Chairman of the Board of 8,000,000 96,000,000
Directors
o | Member of the Board of 6,000,000 360,000,000
Directors
Member of the Board of
i t
3 | Supervisors, Corporate 4,000,000 150,000,000
Governance Officer cum
Company Secretary
Total 606,000,000

- From January 1, 2024 to August 31, 2024: The full-time Head of the Board
of Supervisors received salary according to the Company's salary regulations. From
September 1, 2024, the part-time Head of the Board of Supervisors will received
salary of VND 6,000,000/month.




2

- The salaries of the General Director, Head of Internal Audit, and other
managers in 2024 shall comply with the Company's salary regulations.

2. Remuneration Plan for 2025

The Board of Directors submits to the General Meeting of Shareholders the
2025 plan for paying remuneration to the Board of Directors, Board of Supervisors,
and Company Secretary, as follows:

No. Position Remuneration
(VND/person/month)

1 Chairman of the Board of Directors 8,000,000

2 Member of the Board of Directors 6,000,000

3 Head of the Supervisory Board 6,000,000

e BT

- The salaries of General Director, Head of Internal Audit, and other managers
in 2025 shall comply with the Company's salary regulations.

Respectfully submitted to the General Meeting of Shareholders for
consideration and approval.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE BOARD
- General Meeting of Shareholders; OF DIRECTORS
- Board of Directors, Supervisory Board:; CHAIRMAN

- Company’s Secretary;
- Archived: Office, Finance & Accounting
Dept.

Le Huu Ha




INAM NATIONAL CEMENT SOCIALIST REPUBLIC OF VIETNAM
CORPORATION Independence - Freedom - Happiness
SON CEMENT JSC

0.: ....... -2025/NQ-bHDCD Thanh Hoa, , 2025

RESOLUTION OF THE 2025 ANNUAL
GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS

2025 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
BIM SON CEMENT JOINT STOCK COMPANY

- Pursuant to the Law on Enterprises 2020 and its guiding and amended documents;

- Pursuant to the Charter of organization and Operation of Bim Son Cement Joint
Stock Company;

- Pursuant to the Minutes of the 2025 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company dated June 20, 2025.

RESOLVES:

Article 1. Approval of the Report on the activities of the Board of Directors
in 2024 and the activity plan for 2025.

Article 2. Approval of the Evaluation Report of the Independent Member of
the Board of Directors on the activities of the Board of Directors in 2024.

Article 3. Approval of the Report on the activities of the Supervisory Board
in 2024 and the activity plan for 2025.

Article 4. Approval of the Report on the business performance in 2024 and
the business plan for 2025, including:

® Business plan:

%

Unit of Compared
No. Target Measureiiciit Actual 2024 | Plan 2025 t0 2024
Actual
1 | Main Product Output
1.1 | Clinker Ton 2,800,410 | 2,855,000 101.9%

Cement (including toll "

Ll processing)

3,554,195 | 3,572,000 100.5%

- | Self-produced cement ) 3,242,464 | 3,292,000 101.5%

) Toll pr‘ocessed at VICEM i 311,731 280,000 89.8%
Tam Diep




%
No. Target Meiﬁiﬁeﬁen . | Actual 2024 | Plan 2025 C;’;"ZI(’;?“
Actual

i el . 3794924 | 4162000 |  109.7%

2.1 | Clinker ! 260,075 610,000 234.5%

B2 gfg’c’g;’;m gg"”d“d"”g L . 3,534,849 | 3552000  100.5%
3 | Total Revenue Billion VND 3,499.546 | 3,783.813 108.1%
4 | Profit Before Tax “ 3.607 45.046 | 1,248.8%
5 | Profit After Tax “ 3.607 45.046 | 1,248.8%
6 | Return on Equity (ROE) % 0.18 230 | 1277.8%
7 | State budget contribution Billion VND 108.677 108.958 100.3%
8 | Dividend Payout Ratio % 0 0

Note: The planned profit figures for 2025 in indicators 4, 5, and 6 do not

include foreign exchange differences.

o Construction Investment Plan:
The Company's construction investment plan for 2025 includes a work

volume value of VND 380.957 billion and a payment value of VND 210.415 billion,
in which:

- Group B Project

Project implementation stage:

Waste Heat Recovery Power Generation Project:

+ Work volume value: VND 353.668 billion

+ Payment value: VND 183.572 billion

+ Planned objectives for the year: Start project construction, install equipment,

conduct acceptance testing, and put the system into operation within 2025.

- Group C Projects

Project implementation stage:

Tam Dien clay mine project — Phase 2:

+ Work volume value: VND 26.000 billion

+ Payment value: VND 26.000 billion

+ Planned objectives for the year: Implement compensation and land

clearance, and complete legal procedures for land leasing due to the impact of the
North—South High-Speed Railway passing through the mine area.

Project preparation stage:
Yen Duyen 1 & Yen Duyen 2 limestone mine projects:
+ Work volume value: VND 0.496 billion




+ Payment value : VND 0.447 billion
+ Planned objectives for the year: Prepare exploration proposals and apply for
a mineral exploration license from the Ministry of Agriculture and Environment.
Renovation Project for Electrostatic Precipitators of Kiln No. 2 (36.20) and
Kiln No. 3 (36.1-06)):
+ Work volume value: VND 0.793 billion
+ Payment value : VND 0.396 billion
+ Planned objectives for the year: Prepare a feasibility study report (FSR),
conduct verification and appraisal, and obtain investment approval for the project.
Note: The 2025 business and construction investment plans of VICEM in general,
and Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company in particular, have been submitted by VICEM
to the Ministry of Construction for approval in accordance with regulations. After
receiving the approval from the Ministry of Construction, any necessary adjustments will
be made by VICEM if there are any changes.
Article 5. Approval and ratification of the list of auditing firms for 2025:
1. Deloitte Vietnam Audit Company Limited
2. An Viet Auditing Company Limited
3. VACO Auditing Company Limited
The Board of Directors is authorized to select one of the above-mentioned
firms to audit the Company’s financial statements for the year 2025.
Article 6. Decision on the amendment and supplementation of the Company’s

Charter of organization and operation.
- Amend and supplement Clause 5 and Clause 6 of Article 34: Company

Executives.
- Amend and supplement Clause 3 of Article 35: Appointment, dismissal,

duties, and powers of the General Director.
- Amend and supplement Clause 1 of Article 46: Profit distribution.
Article 7. Approval of the audited financial statements of the Company for

the year 2024.
Article 8. Approval of the proposal on the 2024 profit distribution plan:
No. Item Amount (VND)
Total undistributed profit after tax as of (167,050,570,274)

L | December 31, 2024

Undistributed profit after tax for 2023 (170,657,180,807)

2 | Profit after tax in 2024 3,606,610,533

Note: No profit distribution will be made for the year 2024.

Article 9. Approval of the proposal on remuneration payments for the Board
of Directors (BOD), Supervisory Board (SB), Company Secretary, and the salary for
the General Director and other managers for the year 2024; and the remuneration
and salary plan for 2025, including:
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- Remuneration plan for 2025:

+ For members of the Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board, and the
person in charge of corporate governance cum Company Secretary:

No. Position e il
(VND/person/month)
1 | Chairman of the Board of Directors 8,000,000
2 | Member of the Board of Directors 6,000,000
3 | Head of the Supervisory Board 6,000,000
ot e B S | s onom

+ The salaries of the General Director, Head of Internal Audit, and other managers
in 2025 shall be implemented in accordance with the Company’s salary regulations.

Article 10. Other Matters
» VICEM Bim Son Operations Center Project

Permanently terminate the project/investment, return the land to the local
authorities, and handle the invested costs in accordance with legal regulations and
authorized procedures; submit a report requesting the local authorities to consider and
provide support for the invested costs to ensure the enterprise's maximum benefits.

» Land and Buildings of the Library, Medical Center, and Classrooms Are

Carry out land handover and recovery in accordance with authorized procedures
and legal regulations; report to the competent local authorities for consideration and
support of costs to ensure the Company's rights and benefits; complete procedures
for updating land use changes as regulated (if applicable); liquidate assets and
account for them in accordance with relevant accounting regulations.

Article 11. This resolution shall take effect from 11:30 AM on June 20, 2025.

Article 12. The members of the Board of Directors, Supervisory Board,
Executive Board, and all shareholders of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company are
responsible for implementing this Resolution and organizing its execution in
accordance with their respective authorities, complying with the provisions of law
and the Charter of Bim Son Cement Joint Stock Company./.

Recipients: ON BEHALF OF THE GENERAL
- SSC, HNX (for reporting); MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
- Board of Members, General Director of VICEM CHAIRPERSON

(for reporting);

- Members of the Board of Director, Supervisory

Board of the Company;

- Standing Committee of the Party Committee,

Executive Board, Trade Union of the Company;

- Shareholders (via the Company’s Website);

- Units witthin the Company;

- Archived: Office, BOD. Le Huu Ha




